
Zoning Commission Agenda, 7/22/24 - Page 1 of 1 

WOODBURY COUNTY  
ZONING COMMISSION 

Monday, July 22, 2024 at 5:00 PM 
The Zoning Commission will hold a public meeting on Monday, July 22, 2024 at 5:00 PM in the Board 
of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting 
will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public 
meeting and public hearings on the agenda may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the 
Conference ID: 638 086 537# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in 
person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER

2 ROLL CALL

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: June 24, 2024

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS

» PUBLIC HEARING (ACTION ITEM) FOR PROPOSED MINOR SUBDIVISION – SANDPORT 
ADDITION.  PARCEL #874730400007.  SUMMARY: PROPOSED MINOR SUBDIVISION: To be known as 
Sandport Addition, A Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County, Iowa, a one-lot minor subdivision in a 9.66-acre portion of T87N 
R47W (Liberty Township) in Section 30 in the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ on Parcel #874730400007.  The property is approximately 1.4 
miles west of the City of Salix.  The property is located in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District.  Property Address: 2683 Port 
Neal Road., Salix, IA 51052.  Owner/Applicant: Sandra J. Heilman.

» REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FOR A DATA PROCESSING 
BUSINESS ON PARCEL #884403400009  (ACTION ITEM) SUMMARY: The consideration of a 
Conditional Use Permit application for a recommendation to the Board of Adjustment.  AUR Correctionville LLC (Applicant) and 
property owners Ashley Acres Family Limited Partnership have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application “to place a demand 
response load resource next to the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support grid resiliency” for the proposed use 
to operate a data processing business. The proposed site is on Parcel #884403400009 in T88N R44W (Wolf Creek Township) in 
Section 3 in the SE ¼ of the SE ¼.  The property is located around 6.2 miles southeast of Moville and around 7.7 miles southwest 
of Correctionville.  The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain.  
Owner(s)/Applicant(s): Ashley Acres Family Limited Partnership, 3356 170th St., Correctionville, IA 51016 (Owners) and AUR 
Correctionville LLC, 15988 230th St., Grundy Center, IA 50638.

» NUCLEAR ENERGY REVIEW OF ZONING REGULATIONS DIRECTION FROM THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS (INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEM) SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors at their meeting on July 2, 2024 voted to direct the Zoning Commission to begin the process of exploring nuclear 
energy as a potential energy option in Woodbury County.  This information item is for a preliminary discussion on how to proceed 
with future work sessions and public hearings.  

» HOME OCCUPATION SIGNS ZONING REGULATIONS REVIEW (INFORMATION / 
DISCUSSION ITEM) SUMMARY: This information item is for a preliminary discussion on how to proceed with 
addressing the permitting of home occupation signs.  The Zoning Ordinance allows for one home occupation sign that is 25 square 
foot or less.  This initial discussion will look at potential ways to address the permitting of different types of signs and sizes for home 
occupation purposes.

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

7 STAFF UPDATE

8 COMMISSIONER COMMENT OR INQUIRY

9 ADJOURN

1



PACKET CONTENTS 

Zoning Commission Minutes from June 24, 2024 

Sandport Addi�on, Minor Subdivision Proposal (Public Hearing) 

Data Processing Business, Condi�onal Use Permit Proposal (Review)

Nuclear Energy Resources (Informa�on / Discussion) 

Home Occupa�on Signs Regula�ons (Informa�on / Discussion)

2

3

5

24

41

76



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Zoning Commission  – June 24, 2024 

The Zoning Commission (ZC) meeting convened on the 24th of June, at 5:00 PM in the Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA.  The 
meeting was also made available via teleconference.   

Meeting Audio: 
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Zoning Commission 
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/ 

- YouTube Direct Link: 
o https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=T8mbpubn07g 

ZC Members Present: Barb Parker, Jeff Hanson, Corey Meister, Tom Bride 
County Staff Present:   Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: William Walker, Mark Walker, Kathy Walker, Justin Walker 

Call to Order: 
Vice-Chair Tom Bride formally called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Chris Zellmer Zant was absent. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda: 
William (Kyle) Walker addressed the Commission regarding compliance issues with the dimensions of his home 
occupation advertising sign located on his property that is 10’ x 10’.  The Woodbury County ordinance regarding 
home occupation states one unlighted sign no more than 25 square foot is allowed.  Mr. Walker presented photos 
to Commission for review including a previous lighted ground sign that was added to the site approximately 13 ½ 
years ago and the ground sign that was added about three years ago.  Motion to receive into record: Hanson.  
Second; Parker.  Carried; 4-0. (Received materials contained within the appendix.)  Priestley suggested 
Commission consider reviewing the ordinance and possibly consider a conditional use process for a case-by-case 
review signs proposals that are greater than 25 square feet.  Bride inquired if the current sign could remain in place 
until amendment to ordinance is decided.  Priestley stated a conditional use and building permit would need to be 
approved to mitigate the issue with Mr. Walker’s sign. Hanson, Meiser, Parker, and Bride agreed to look into a 
potential amendment to the zoning ordinance to include a case-by-case consideration of home occupation signs 
through a conditional use permit process.  If changes are proposed, the amendments would be sent to the Board of 
Supervisors for consideration.  

Approval Of Minutes: 04/22/2024 & 05/29/2024 
Motion by Hanson to approve the minutes from April 22, 2024. Second by Parker.  Meister abstained.   Approved 3-
0.  Motion by Meister to approve the minutes from May 29, 2024.  Seconded by Hanson.  Parker abstained.  
Approved 3-0. 

Public Hearing (Action Item) for Proposed Minor Subdivision – Second Chance Addition: 
Priestley read summary of the proposed Second Chance Addition Subdivision comprehensive plan into the record.   
Mark Walker and Kathryn Walker have filed for a one (1) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel 
#894620400001 and referenced above. This subdivision is being completed to establish a lot in anticipation for a 
family member to build an eventual house. The property is presently zoned Agricultural Estates (AE) which 
allows for additional houses to be included within the quarter-quarter. This minor subdivision proposal has been 
properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on June 11, 2024. The neighbors within 1000 FT have 
been duly notified via a June 7, 2024 letter about the June 24, 2024 Zoning Commission public hearing. 
Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have 
been requested to comment. The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code 
closure requirements and found that the lot(s) have adequate access. As noted, this property is located in the 
Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District and is not located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) – Zone X. 
The City of Sioux City exercised– their extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution No. 2024-
0535. Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision 
Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval.  Meister motioned to close public hearing.  
Second by Hanson.  Carried 4-0.  Frontage on main parcel will remain at 60’.  Meister motioned to recommend 

3



2

approval of the Second Chance Addition final plat to the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors.  Parker 
second.  Carried 4-0. 

Public Comment on Matters not on the Agenda: 
None. 

Staff Update:   
Priestley stated at a recent Board of Supervisors meeting, Supervisor Radig brought up the possibility of nuclear 
energy as a power source to explore.  Although it is not a formal request from the Board of Supervisors at this time, 
the Planning & Zoning Department and Zoning Commission have been asked to research what steps would need 
to be taken if nuclear were to be an option for Woodbury County.   

The Board of Supervisors voted to approve the Husen 2nd Addition subdivision and rezone that was presented to 
the Commission at the last meeting.  Subsequently, an issue of soil testing was raised by a concerned citizen.  
Priestley asked the Commission if they recall soil testing being a consideration for subdivision approval in previous 
years, Commission indicated they had not.  Bride added testing responsibilities would fall to builder and 
homeowner.  Priestley stated the Siouxland District Health department permit wells and septic systems in 
Woodbury County.   

Commissioner Comment or Inquiry: 
None 

Motion to Adjourn: 
Meister.  Second: Hanson.  Carried 4-0.  Meeting ended 5:39 PM. 

Appendix – Received Materials 

Page 1 Page 2 

4



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator  Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – JULY 17, 2024
SANDPORT ADDITION – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Sandra J. Heilman
Application Type: Minor Subdivision
Name of Subdivision: Sandport Addition
Application Date: July 1, 2024
Number of Lots: 1
Total Acres: 9.66
Extraterritorial Review: Waived by Salix Resolution #2024-05
Legal Notice Date: July 11, 2024
Neighbor(s) Notice Date: July 8, 2024
Stakeholder(s) Notice Date: TBD
ZC Public Hearing Date: July 22, 2024
BIS Agenda Date: TBD
Attorney: Gregg Stroschein
Surveyor: Dale Smith

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 874730400007
Township/Range: T87N R47W (Liberty)
Section: 30
Quarter: SE ¼ of the SE ¼ 
Zoning District: General Industrial
Floodplain: Zone X
Property Address: 2683 Port Neal Road, Salix, IA 51052

CONTENTS
Summary, Aerial Map, Plat Excerpt, Recommendation, & 
Suggested Motion

Legal Notification

Neighbor(s) Notification

Stakeholder(s) Comments

Review Criteria / Applicant Responses

Application

Supporting Documentation

SUMMARY
Sandra J. Heilman has filed for a one (1) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel #874730400007and referenced above.  This 
subdivision is being completed to establish a lot for the potential uses as a contractor yard.  The property is presently zoned General Industrial (GI) 
which allows for construction contractor yards.  This minor subdivision proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on 
July 11, 2024.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a July 8, 2024 letter about the July 22, 2024 Zoning Commission public 
hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to 
comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer’s review memo for compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and access will be provided at or 
before the meeting on July 22, 2024.  As noted, this property is located in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District and portions are located in the 
Zone X 0.2 percent floodplain but will be removed on July 17, 2024 when the new Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) goes into effect.  The City of 
Salix waived their extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution No. 2024-05.  Based on the information received and the 
requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval.

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCEPRT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria
for approval pending confirmed compliance with closure and access as per the Woodbury County Engineer’s review memo.  Staff recommends approval 
contingent on the contents of the review memo being in compliance.

SUGGESTED MOTION AFTER RECEIPT OF THE REVIEW MEMO
Motion to recommend approval of the Sandport Addition final plat to the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors. 

5



2 

APPLICATION

6



3

FINAL PLAT

7



4 8



5 

PLANNING AND ZONING STAFF – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, Planning and Zoning staff: 

shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in 
accordance with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code. 

Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning 
Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law. 

shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and

Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other 
materials to all relevant stakeholders as required. 

shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and

The County Engineer’s review memo is expected to be available at or before the meeting.  The proposal will meet the appropriate criteria 
for approval pending confirmed compliance with closure and access as per the Woodbury County Engineer’s review memo.   

shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form 
of the plat and related documents; and

Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat. 

shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make 
recommendations for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties. 

Staff attest to the final plat conforming to the goals and objectives of the county plan.  Staff recommends approval contingent on the 
contents of the Count Engineer’s review memo stating compliance with closure, access, etc. 

ZONING COMMISSION – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior 
to the date of the hearing; and

Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have 
also ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met.  

shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and

Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general 
plan, and other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the 
Commission well in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss 
the final plat and other relevant information. 

may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and

Staff does not recommend any specific conditions for this final plat. However, specific conditions (if any) may be recommended by the 
Commission. 

shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the 
form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be 
forwarded to the property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision. 

During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter 
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate 
with the subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law.  

9



6 

EXTRATERRITORAL REVIEW (DRAFT MINUTES) – CITY OF SALIX
The City of Salix waived their extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution No. 2024-05 on June 12, 2024.

10



7 11



8

LEGAL NOTIFICATION – ZONING COMMISSION MEETING PUBLISHED IN THE SIOUX CITY JOURNAL – June 11, 2024

12



9

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing:

8 

Notification Letter Date: July 8, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Zoning Commission

Public Hearing Date: July 22, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 0

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS
Sandra J. Heilman 2683 Port Neal Road Salix IA 51052-8111 No comments.
Hugh Brian Heilman 2695 Port Neal Road Salix IA 51052 No comments. 
Mark W. Maupin 705 Winfield Circle Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments. 
Kimmel Family Farms, LLC and 
Kent W. Ivener and Michell B. 
Ivener of the Kent W. Ivener Living 
Trust

111 Doral Lane Dakota Dunes SD 57049 No comments. 

MidAmerican Energy Company PO Box 657 Des Moines IA 50303-0657 No comments.
Iowa Conservation 502 E. 9th St. - Floor 4 Des Moines IA 50319-5005 No comments.
D & H Kimmel Farms, LLC and ML 
Kimmel Farms, LLC

4110 Floyd Boulevard Sioux City IA 51108 No comments. 

State of Iowa Property 
Management Section

800 Lincoln Way Ames IA 50010 No comments. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
CONCORD TOWNSHIP: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LIBERTY TOWNSHIP: I and the other two Liberty Township trustees give our approval for the Sandport Addition that is being 

proposed by Sandy Heilman. We have no concerns at this time. – Wade Brown, 7/8/24. 
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following proposed minor subdivision for MEC electric and we have, no conflicts. –

Casey Meinen, 7/3/24. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 7/15/24.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: THE REVIEW MEMO WILL BE PROVIDED AT OR BEFORE THE MEETING.
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 7/3/24.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 7/3/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The Treasurer’s Office has the following comments:
1. 2022 certified taxes are paid in full.   
2. If the subdivision / plat is not finalized prior to the certification of the 2023 taxes, these taxes 
would need to be paid in full prior to Treasurer’s certification. – Tina Bertrand, 7/5/24. 

13



10

PLAT MAP EXCERPT

14



11

TITLE OPINION

15



12 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

16



13 17



14 18



15 

ZONING MAP

19



16 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP – BECAME EFFECTIVE ON JULY 17, 2024

20



17

BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DATA
Base Flood Elevation Data (BFE) is not required as the area requested to be subdivided is not within the Special Flood 
Hazard Area.

ELEVATION MAP

21



18 

SOIL MAP(S)

22



19 

SOIL REPORT(S)

23



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator  Dawn Norton – Senor Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – JULY 17, 2024
DEMAND RESPONSE LOAD RESOURCE – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): AUR Correctionville LLC / 

Ashley Acres Family 
Limited Partnership

Application Type: Conditional Use Permit
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation
Total Acres: 1.5
Current Use: Unspecified
Proposed Use: Operation of Data 

Processing Business
Pre-application 
Meeting:

June 28, 2024

Application Date: July 1, 2024
Legal Notice Date: July 20, 2024
Neighbor(s) Notice 
Date:

July 18, 2024

Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

July 3, 2024

Zoning Commission 
Review:

July 22, 2024

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

August 5, 2024

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 884403400009
Township/Range: T88N R44W (Wolf Creek)
Section: 3
Quarter: SE ¼ SE ¼ 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Zone X (Not in Floodplain)
Property 
Address:

No address

CONTENTS
Staff Recommendation / Suggested Motion

Specific Description and Project Narrative

Zoning Ordinance Criteria for Board Approval

Application

Public Notification Information 

Supplemental Information

SUMMARY
AUR Correctionville LLC (Applicant) and property owners Ashley Acres Family Limited Partnership have filed for a Conditional Use 
Permit application “to place a demand response load resource next to the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support 
grid resiliency” for the proposed use to operate a data processing business. The proposed site is on Parcel #884403400009 as 
referenced above. The parcel is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain. The 
Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance does not reference data processing or this 
specific request by the applicant. However, this can be interpreted under Section 3.03.3 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance as 
a comparable utility use or comparable to the industrial use of research and development laboratories in the sense of data analysis. 
Therefore, for the purposes of this request, data processing can be interpreted as a conditional use under section 3.03.3 in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District. Hence, based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning 
and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal could meet the appropriate criteria for approval.
AERIAL MAP

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends for the applicants and property owners to provide for the mitigation of any noise generated by the facility that could adversely 
impact the neighboring properties.  Staff also recommends that the facility have adequate security and lighting including the use of security fencing.

SUGGESTED MOTION
Motion to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment with the condition that the applicants and property owners mitigate noise generated from 
the facility and provide adequate security for the facility including the use of fencing and lighting.

24



2

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

25



3

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance does not reference data processing or this 
specific request by the applicant. However, this can be interpreted under Section 3.03.3 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance as a 
comparable utility or comparable to the industrial use of research and development laboratories in the sense of business data analysis. 
Therefore, for the purposes of this request, data processing can be interpreted as a conditional use under section 3.03.3 in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This request can be construed to be compatible with the Economic Development Goals and Objectives of the Woodbury County 
Comprehensive Plan 2040 including “the encouragement of the diversification of Woodbury County’s economy…” (p. 53)

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Even though this location has separation distances from single-family dwellings, it will be essential for the applicants to minimize the 
amount of noise generated from the operations of this facility.  The location of this site could discourage future development, however the 
nearest dwelling is around 1,100 FT north from the site.  Other than any potential noise staff does not see any other factor’s impacting the 
neighborhood, traffic, parking, utilities, or other factors affecting health, safety, and welfare.  Staff does recommend the use of security 
fencing and lighting to protect the facility.

26



4

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Measures should be taken to reduce the amount of noise generated from the facility.  Staff recommends security fencing and appropriate 
lighting.  

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This location was selected due to its proximity to Woodbury County REC’s electrical substation.

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This proposal does not appear to significantly impact the items as referenced in Criteria #6.

27



5 

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

Locating this business at this location could be construed as adding to the tax-base. 

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: 

The applicants/property owners should consider measures to secure the property including security fencing and lighting.  Efforts should 
be implemented to mitigate the impact of noise generated from the facility. 

28



6 

APPLICATION

29



7 30



8 31



9 32



10 33



11

LEGAL NOTIFICATION
The Woodbury County Zoning Commission meeting is a regular agenda item for review of the application for a recommendation to the Board of 
Adjustment.  The public hearing is to be held before the Board of Adjustment on August 5, 2024 at 5:00 PM.  The public hearing notice is to be 
published in the Sioux City Journal Legal’s Section on July 20, 2024.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Total Property Owners within 500 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing:

5

Notification Letter Date: July 18, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: August 5, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 0

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS
Brian & Jo Ann Sadler Joint 
Revocable Living Trust 3448 160th St. Correctionville IA 51016-8113

No comments. 

Bruce B. &  Shelly Dawn Sadler 3417 170th St. Correctionville IA 51016-8116 No comments
Ashley Acres Family Limited 
Partnership 3356 170th St. Correctionville IAA 51016-8115

No comments 

Northwest Iowa Power 
Cooperative PO Box 240 Le Mars IA 51031

No comments

Kendall & Lisa Ashley 1665 Kossuth Ave. Correctionville IA 51016 No comments

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the attached conditional use permit for MEC electric and we have, no conflicts. –

Casey Meinen, 7/5/24. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 7/15/24.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have no issues with this proposed land use at this location.  The change would appear to be 

consistent with the location of the existing facility already in place. – Mark Nahra, 7/17/24. 
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 7/3/24.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this application. – Neil Stockfleth, 7/3/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The Treasurer’s office has no comments. – Tina Bertrand, 7/5/24.

34



12 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

35



13 

ZONING MAP

36



14 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

37



15

ELEVATION MAP

38



16 

SOIL MAP(S)

39



17

SOIL REPORT(S)
Currently, no soil report is on file for this parcel on the Beacon Assessor’s site.  Based on the mapping, the property is 
composed of the following soils:

Excerpt from Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS)
Source: https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/WssProduct/m0xjoogycpt4nnmiixblsnsc/m0xjoogycpt4nnmiixblsnsc/20240702_11171611628_56_Iowa_Corn_Suitability_Rating_CSR2_IA.pdf

40



NUCLEAR ENERGY DIRECTION FROM THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (INFORMATION / 
DISCUSSION ITEM) SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on July 2, 2024 
voted to direct the Zoning Commission to begin the process of exploring nuclear energy as a potential energy option in 
Woodbury County.  This information item is for a preliminary discussion on how to proceed with future work sessions and 
public hearings.   
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Initial Information about Nuclear 
The following is provided for initial informational purposes.  The goal is to examine both standard nuclear power plants and small 
modular reactors as potential energy opportunities in the unincorporated areas in Woodbury County.  The following articles are again 
provided to begin the exploration of nuclear technology.  

Nuclear Power Plant –  
- A nuclear power plant is a thermal power station that harnesses energy from nuclear fuel fission. Here’s how it works: the 

heat released during fission boils water, producing steam. This steam drives a turbine connected to a generator, ultimately 
producing electricity.  

Small Modular Reactors (SMR) – 
- Type of advanced nuclear reactor designed to be smaller in size and capacity compared to traditional nuclear reactors.
- Characteristics:

o Small Size.  SMRs have a power capacity of up to 30 MW per unit, which is about one-third of the capacity of 
conventional nuclear reactors.

o Modular Construction.  These reactors are designed to be factory-assembled and transported to the site for 
installation.  

o Flexibility.  SMRs can be deployed in single or multiple modules, making them suitable for a variety of application, 
including industrial use and remote areas with limited grid capacity.

o Safety. Many SMR designs incorporate passive safety features, which rely on natural physical processes rather than 
active controls to ensure safety.  

Articles Enclosed: 
- Nuclear Power Plan Licensing Process 

o https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/fact-sheets/licensing-process-fs.html
- Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards 

o https://scp.nrc.gov/
- Governing Legislation 

o www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/governing-laws.html
- Fact Sheet: Biden-⁠Harris Administration Announces New Steps to Bolster Domestic Nuclear Industry and Advance America’s Clean 

Energy Future 
o https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/29/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-

new-steps-to-bolster-domestic-nuclear-industry-and-advance-americas-clean-energy-future/
- Without a plant currently operating in Iowa, does nuclear energy have a future in the state?

o https://www.weareiowa.com/article/tech/science/climate-change/nuclear-energy-in-iowa-future-developments-midamerican/524-
aaed2ac4-7c3b-406a-a84b-c6e356b181ee

- Newly Signed Bill Will Boost Nuclear Reactor Deployment in the United States
o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/newly-signed-bill-will-boost-nuclear-reactor-deployment-united-

states#:~:text=President%20Biden%20signed%20the%20Fire,t%20seen%20since%20the%201970s. 
- What is a Nuclear Microreactor? 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-nuclear-microreactor
- Micro-reactor Pilot Program 

o https://www.eielson.af.mil/microreactor/
- Project PELE Mobile Nuclear Reactor 

o https://www.cto.mil/pele_eis/
- NRC Dockets Construction Permit Application for TerraPower’s Natrium Reactor 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/nrc-dockets-construction-permit-application-terrapowers-natrium-reactor
- What is High-Assay Low-Enriched Uranium (HALEU)? 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-high-assay-low-enriched-uranium-haleu
- 4 Crucial Steps the Biden-Harris Administration is Taking to Secure a Nuclear Fuel Supply Chain 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/4-crucial-steps-biden-harris-administration-taking-secure-nuclear-fuel-supply-chain
- New DOE and NRC Agreement Will Lead to Faster Deployment and Licensing of U.S. Nuclear Technologies 

o https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/new-doe-and-nrc-agreement-will-lead-faster-deployment-and-licensing-us-nuclear
- What are Small Modular Reactors (SMRs)? 

o https://www.iaea.org/newscenter/news/what-are-small-modular-reactors-smrs
- Small modular reactors 

o https://www.iaea.org/topics/small-modular-reactors

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



HOME OCCUPATION SIGNS ZONING REGULATIONS REVIEW (INFORMATION / 
DISCUSSION ITEM) SUMMARY: This information item is for a preliminary discussion on how to proceed with 
addressing the permitting of home occupation signs.  The Zoning Ordinance allows for one home occupation sign that is 25 
square foot or less.  This initial discussion will look at potential ways to address the permitting of different types of signs and 
sizes for home occupation purposes. 

The following pages include Zoning Ordinance excerpts that contain the sign regulations which 
include the “Section 3.03.4: Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses,” “Section 4.14: Home 
Occupation Uses,” and “Section 5.02: Sign Requirements.”   

Consideration might entail a potential conditional use permit process for signs that exceed 25 SF.  For 
example, if a property owner operates a home occupation business out in a rural area and wishes to 
have a sign greater than 25 SF, a process could be considered to enable the Zoning Commission and 
Board of Adjustment to evaluate whether a sign greater than the allowed maximum size could fit with 
the neighborhood. The ordinance could possibly include a range such as 25 SF or below is allowed 
outright and 26 to 100 SF requires Zoning Commission review and Board of Adjustment approval.  
Consideration could also be given to the types of signs including free-standing signs and building 
signs.  

76



ZONING DISTRICTS 

Adopted 7/22/2008 Zoning Ordinance Page 39 
 Woodbury County 

ok  Principal allowed use 

C   Conditional use 

A   Accessory use 

TU Temporary use 

                --   Prohibited use 

A
P

 

A
E

 

N
R

 

S
R

 

G
C

 

H
C

 

L
I 

G
I 

  Hospice facility C C C C -- -- -- -- 

    Hospice services -- -- -- -- ok -- -- -- 

    Substance abuse counseling C C -- -- ok -- -- -- 

    Soup kitchens -- -- -- -- ok -- -- -- 

Transportation, communication and public services               

  Air transportation                 

    Airport and heliport C C -- -- -- -- -- -- 

  Bus garage C -- -- -- ok -- ok -- 

  Pipelines                 

    Pipelines C C C C C C C C 

    Pipeline terminals, pumping stations, etc. C -- -- -- -- -- C C 

  Public services                 

    Ambulance stations C C C C ok -- -- -- 

    Fire stations C C C C ok -- -- -- 

    Police stations C C C C ok -- -- -- 

  Public service garage -- -- -- -- C C ok C 

  Railroads                 

    Rail lines C C C C C C C C 

    Rail switch yards, equipment repair & maint. C -- -- -- -- -- C C 

  Signs                 

    Off-premise  -- -- -- -- C C -- -- 

    On-premise A A A A A A A A 

 Telecommunication towers and facilities         

  Antennas on existing structures ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok 

  Telecommunication towers C C C C C C C C 

 Utilities          

    Electrical energy generation (not incl. wind) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

    Electrical energy wind generation (Commercial) C -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

    Sewage treatment plants C C C C C C C C 

    Utility substations ok ok -- -- ok -- -- ok 

  Electric wind generator (Private use) C C C C C C C C 

  Solar Energy Systems (Private use) A A A A A A A A 

  Solar Energy Systems, Utility Scale -- -- -- -- -- -- -- C 

  Sewage treatment for subdivision C C C C C C C C 

  Sewage lagoon C C C C C C C C 

  Water storage tanks C C C C C C C C 

77



GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Adopted 7/22/2008 Zoning Ordinance Page 46 
 Woodbury County 

4. No detached accessory building or structure shall exceed the height of the principal 
building or structure. 

5. Detached accessory structures shall not be located closer to any other accessory or 
principal building than ten feet. 

Section 4.13: Building prohibited.   

The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) has identified areas that are poten-
tially subject to inundation by waters released due to partial or complete failure of a dam or 
other water retention or detention facility.  No building shall be constructed in such identi-
fied potential water inundation areas.  

Section 4.14: Home Occupation Uses.   

“Home occupation” is defined as any business, occupation or activity conducted for gain 
within a residential building, or an accessory building, which is incidental or secondary to 
the use of such building for dwelling purposes and which does not change the essential 
residential character of the property.  The regulations of this section dealing with home 
occupations are designed to protect and maintain the residential character of a neighbor-
hood while permitting certain limited commercial activities.  

1. The home occupation must be the enterprise of a person living on the premises. 

2. Only three persons who do not reside on the premises may be employed in the home 
occupation. 

3. The home occupation shall be conducted entirely within an enclosed building and 
there shall be no display or outdoor storage that would indicate from the exterior that 
the building is being used in part for any purpose other than residential. 

4. Home occupation and employee vehicles shall be stored either in a building or 
screened from view from a public or private road or from an adjacent property. 

5. Only one on-premise unlighted sign not more than 25 square foot in area shall be al-
lowed. 

6. No equipment or process shall be used in a home occupation that produces noise, vi-
bration, glare, fumes, odors, or electromagnetic interference detectable beyond the 
premises to the extent that the home occupation is determined to be noxious, offensive 
or hazardous. 

7. Prohibited home occupations:  The following uses are specifically prohibited as home 
occupations: 

A. Adult uses. 

Section 4.15: Junk vehicles. 

1. Junk vehicles may not be stored outside an enclosed building except  

A. In a properly screened storage area as part of either an automotive salvage busi-
ness or an automotive towing business as allowed in the Land Use Summary Ta-
ble in Section 3.03-4.   

B. Not more than two junk vehicles may be stored outside an enclosed building in a 
location adequately screened from view from a public roadway or adjacent prop-
erty. 

2. Parts removed from vehicles may not be stored outside an enclosed building. 

78



SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

Adopted 7/22/2008 Zoning Ordinance Page 52 
 Woodbury County 

Abbreviations – 
    DU – Dwelling unit 
    GFA – Gross floor area 
    GLA – Gross land area 

Required Number of 
Parking spaces 

Required Number 
of Loading spaces 

    
Churches, synagogues, temples and 
religious shrines 

1 per 4 seats  None 

  Schools 
(unless otherwise noted below) 

1 per employee  
+ 1 per 4 seats in assembly   

One 

    Secondary schools 1 per employee  
+ 1 per 3 students 

One 

  Social services  
(unless otherwise noted below) 

1 per employee None 

  Hospice facility 1 ½ per employee  

    Substance abuse counseling 2 per employee  

Transp., Comm., & Pub. Svc. 
(unless otherwise noted below) 

1 per employee None 

  Pipeline (incl. terminals, pump station, 
etc.) 

Pipeline (incl. terminal, pump sta., etc.) 

None None 

    Rail lines None None 

  Signs None None 

  Telecommunication towers and facilities None None 

  Utilities    

    Electrical wind generation (Commer-
cial) 

None None 

    Utility substations None None 

  Electric wind generator (Private use) None None 

  Sewage treatment for subdivision None None 

  Sewage lagoon None None 

  Water storage tanks None None 

 

Section 5.02: Sign Requirements 

1. Purpose.  The purpose of this section is to set forth minimum requirements for use, 
size and location of signs in order to ensure public health safety and welfare and 
promote implementation of the comprehensive plan. 

2. Scope of regulations.  The regulations contained in this section apply to signs in 
all zoning districts.  No sign may be located, erected or maintained except in com-
pliance with the regulations of this section.   

3. Nonconformities.  Any sign legally in existence on the effective date of this ordi-
nance that is made nonconforming by these regulations or any amendments thereto 
may continue subject to the requirements of Section 4.02, including provisions for 
amortization of nonconformities in subsection 4.02-4. C. 

4. Permit required.  A sign permit, issued by the Zoning Director in response to an 
application containing information needed to determine compliance with the re-
quirements of this Section, shall be required prior to erection of any sign, except 
exempt signs as described in subsection 6 below. 

5. Prohibited signs.   

79



SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

Adopted 7/22/2008 Zoning Ordinance Page 53 
 Woodbury County 

A. No sign shall be placed on or over any road right-of-way other than an official 
traffic or street sign and such other signs approved for placement by the con-
trolling public agency. 

B. No sign shall be placed on any public or private party without the consent of 
the owner or authorized agent of the owner of the property. 

C. No sign shall be placed at any location where it may, by reason of its size, 
shape, design, location, content, coloring, manner of illumination or changing 
display capability, constitute a traffic hazard or a detriment to traffic safety by 
obstructing the vision of drivers by obscuring or otherwise physically interfering 
with any official traffic control device, or that may be confused with an official 
traffic control device.  Signs must conform to the corner visual clearance re-
quirements of section 4.09. 

6. Exempt signs.  The following signs are exempt from the regulations of this section. 

A. Traffic control signs approved by the controlling public agency for placement on 
the public right-of-way and other signs required by law or government order. 

B. Display of any official flag or emblem of the nation or state. 

C. Any sign located within a building that is not visible from a public right-of-way. 

D. Grave markers, memorials and statues of persons or events that are non-
commercial. 

E. Temporary holiday decorations and displays. 

F. Community event notices. 

G. Signs attached to or applied directly to a motor vehicle that is used in the nor-
mal course of business.  A sign-bearing vehicle that is parked more or less 
permanently in a location visible from a traveled road may be determined to be 
a sign and therefore subject to the requirements of this section. 

H. Information signs to provide direction, safety or convenience of the public to 
assist in finding entrances, exits, parking, rest rooms, telephones, etc. 

I. Address signs containing only the address of the premises. 

J. Political signs promoting a public issue or a candidate for public office. 

K. Real estate for sale or rent signs that comply with the size and location stand-
ards for on-premise signs in the zoning district. 

L. Construction site signs identifying a development, developer, principal contrac-
tors, designers, etc. 

M. Incidental signs serving the interest of the property owner, such as “No Hunt-
ing”, “No Trespassing”, etc.  

7. Standards for on-premise advertising signs.  Standards for on-premise advertis-
ing signs are set forth in the following tables. 

80



SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

Adopted 7/22/2008 Zoning Ordinance Page 54 
 Woodbury County 

A. Free-standing signs. 

(1) Pylon signs 

  Allowed? 
Maximum 

Size 
Required 
Setbacks 

Maximum 
Height 

Minimum Clearance 
from Grade 

AP 

No N/A 
AE 

NR 

SR 

GC 

Yes 

100 sq. ft. 

10 ft. Front 
 5 ft. Side 

45 ft. 12 ft. 
HC 200 sq. ft. 

LI 
100 sq. ft. 

GI 

 

(2) Ground signs 

  Allowed? 
Maximum 

Size 
Required 
Setbacks 

Maximum 
Height 

Minimum Clear-
ance from Grade 

AP 
Home Oc-
cupation 

Signs 

25 sq. ft. 

10 ft. Front  
5 ft. Side 

6 feet 

None 

AE 

NR 

SR 

Home Oc-
cupation 
Signs & 

Apt. Ident. 
Signs 

GC 

Yes 

100 sq. 
ft. 

10 feet HC 
200 sq. 

ft. 

LI 100 sq. 
ft. GI 

 

81



SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

Adopted 7/22/2008 Zoning Ordinance Page 55 
 Woodbury County 

B. Building signs. 

(1) Wall signs 

  Allowed? Maximum Size Maximum Height 

AP 

Home Occupation 
Signs 

25 sq. ft. 

Not above eave or 
parapet 

 

AE 

NR 

SR 
Home Occupation 

Signs 
Apt. Ident. Signs 

10 sq. ft. 

GC 

Yes 

20% of wall area 
HC 

LI 
10% of wall area  

GI 

(2) Window signs 

  Allowed? Maximum Size 
Maximum Number of 

Signs 

AP 

No N/A 
AE 

NR 

SR 

GC 
Yes 25% of window area 2 per building side 

HC 

LI 
No N/A 

GI 

(3) Projecting signs 

  Allowed? 
Maximum 

Size 
Maximum 

Height 

Maximum 
Projection 
from Bldg 

Minimum 
Clearance 

AP 

No N/A 
AE 

NR 

SR 

GC 

Yes 12 sq. ft 
Not above 

eave or par-
apet  

6 ft. 

8 ft. over 
walkway 
14' over 
driveway HC 

LI 
No N/A 

GI 

82



SUPPLEMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

Adopted 7/22/2008 Zoning Ordinance Page 56 
 Woodbury County 

8. Standards for off-premise advertising signs.   

A. Standards for off-premise advertising signs (e.g. billboards) are set forth in the 
following table: 

  Allowed? 
Required 

Separation  
Maximum 

Size 
Required 
Setbacks 

Maximum 
Height 

AP 

No N/A N/A N/A N/A 
AE 

NR 

SR 

GC 
Conditional 

Use approved 
by Board of 
Adjustment  

1000 ft.    
between    

off-premise 
signs;       

1000 ft. from 
AE, NR, SR 

zones 

500 sq. ft.  
+ 1 addl. 

sq.ft. per 1’ 
addl. sepa-
ration up to 
672 sq.ft. 

Zoning 
district 

setbacks 
35 ft. 

HC 

LI 
No N/A N/A N/A N/A 

GI 

B. No off-premise advertising signs shall be located within 660 feet of the nearest right-
of-way line or in a location visible from the nearest right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 
75 between its intersection with U.S. Highway 20 and the Plymouth County line.   

 

Section 5.03: Floodplain Management Ordinance 

1.   Definitions  
Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this Ordinance shall be in-
terpreted so as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this 
Ordinance its most reasonable application.  

A. Appurtenant Structure – A structure which is on the same parcel of the property 
as the principal structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental to the 
use of the principal structure. 

B. Base Flood - The flood having one (1) percent chance of being equaled or ex-
ceeded in any given year.  (Also commonly referred to as the “100-year flood”). 

C. Base Flood Elevation (BFE) – The elevation floodwaters would reach at a par-
ticular site during the occurrence of a base flood event. 

D. Basement - Any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level 
below ground level (subgrade) on all sides.  Also see "lowest floor."  

E. Development - Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, 
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, 
grading, paving, excavation, drilling operations or storage of equipment or mate-
rials.  “Development” does not include “minor projects” or “routine maintenance of 
existing buildings and facilities” as defined in this section.  It also does not in-
clude gardening, plowing, and similar practices that do not involve filling or grad-
ing. 

83




